IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

SAM J. COLDING, as Collier County Property Appraiser, and the DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioners,

vs.

CASE NO. 64,366

0CT 98 1933 L SID J. WHITE CLERK SUPREME COURT Chief Grauty Ch

FILED

C

PETER W. HERZOG, AND JOAN L. HERZOG,

Respondents.

Second District Court of Appeal of Florida Case No. 82-2013

PETITIONERS' INITIAL BRIEF

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

J. Terrell Williams Assistant Attorney General The Capitol, Rm. LLO4 Tallahassee, Florida 32301 904/487-2142

John M. Hathaway, Esq. P.O. Drawer 1537 Punta Gorda, Florida 33950 813/639-4147

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONERS

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

In this brief, the Petitioner, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, STATE OF FLORIDA, will be referred to as the "Department." The Copetitioner, SAM J. COLDING, as Property Appraiser of Collier County, Florida, will be referred to as the "Property Appraiser." The Respondents, PETER W. HERZOG & JOAN L. HERZOG, will be referred to as the "Respondents." The Appellate Court in this case was the Second District Court of Appeal of Florida, which Court will be referred to herein as the "District Court." The trial court in this case was the Twentieth Judicial Circuit in and for Collier County, Florida, which court will be referred to as the "trial court."

iv

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Respondents are permanent residents of the State of Missouri (A.-2). They also own a vacation residence in Collier County, Florida, which they used as a "part-time" dwelling during the year 1982 (A.-2). The 1982 personal property assessment roll of Collier County contained an assessment by the Property Appraiser of certain household goods and personal effects located in the Respondents' Collier County part-time dwelling (A.-2). The Collier County dwelling was not leased by the Respondents and the household goods and personal effects were not used commercially during the tax year in question (A.-2).

The Respondents contested the assessment by filing a complaint in the trial court against the Property Appraiser and the Department. The complaint alleged, among other things, that their household goods and personal effects at the Collier County part-time dwelling were exempt from ad valorem taxation under the Florida statutes or, alternatively, that the tax assessment was in violation of the Privileges and Immunities Clause of the U.S. Constitution (Art. IV, §2, Cl. 1). On August 19, 1982, the trial court entered a "Final Judgment" upholding the subject assessment by the Property Appraiser of the Respondents' household goods and personal effects (A.-4).

The final judgment of the trial court was subsequently reversed in a decision of the District Court filed on September 14, 1983 (A. 1-3). The District Court did not rule on the Respondents' privileges and immunities claim by holding that household goods and personal effects are not subject to ad valorem taxation in Florida, whether owned by a resident or a non-resident (A.-2). However, the District Court did certify to this Court as a question of great public importance the following qustion (A.-3).

> ARE HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND PERSONAL EFFECTS SUBJECT TO AD VALOREM TAXATION UNDER THE STATUTES AND CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA?

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

POINT I

ARE HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND PERSONAL EFFECTS SUBJECT TO AD VALOREM TAXATION UNDER THE STATUTES AND CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA?

POINT II

ARE THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS LIMITING THE EXEMPTION FROM AD VALOREM TAXATION OF HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND PERSONAL EFFECTS TO FLORIDA RESIDENTS ONLY VIOLATIVE OF THE PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES CLAUSE OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION?

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND PERSONAL EFFECTS OF NON-RESIDENTS ARE SUBJECT TO AD VALOREM TAXATION BY MANDATE OF THE FLORIDA CONSTI-TUTION AND THE GENERAL LAWS OF THIS STATE.

The District Court below relied primarily on the case of <u>Department of Revenue v. Markham</u>, 381 So.2d 1101 (Fla. 1 DCA 1979), as authority for its conclusion that no household goods and personal effects are subject to ad valorem taxation in Florida, whether owned by residents or non-residents. The First District Court of Appeal of Florida did hold in the <u>Markham</u> case that household goods and personal effects are not subject to ad valorem taxation in this state, whether owned by residents or non-residents. However, the Department respectfully submits for the reasons set forth below that the rationale underlying the decision of the First District Court in the <u>Markham</u> case should be rejected by this Court.

First, the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in the Markham case was subsequently quashed by this Court in <u>Department of Revenue v. Markham</u>, 396 So.2d 1120 (Fla. 1981). Therefore, the opinion of the First District in the <u>Markham</u> case was rendered void by this Court's quashal and said decision

of the First District Court clearly carries no weight as <u>stare</u> <u>decisis</u> at this present time. See, 13 Fla. Jur.2d, <u>Courts &</u> Judges, §15 at page 271.

The First District's lengthy decision in the <u>Markham</u> case, contains an exhaustive and detailed analysis by the Court of various statutory provisions relating to the taxation of personal property in general and of household goods and personal effects in particular. In summary, the First District's opinion holding that the "household goods and personal effects" of both residents and non-residents are not subject to ad valorem taxation was based primarily on the statutory definition of "tangible personal property," which expressly excludes both inventory and household goods from the definition of "tangible personal property."

The statutory provisions excluding "household goods" from the definition of tangible personal property were first enacted in 1967 as §200.01, F.S. (1967). These provisions have been renumbered and amended over the years and are contained in subsection 192.001(11)(d), which read as follows:

> (d) "Tangible personal property" means all goods, chattels, and other articles of value (but not including the vehicular items enumerated in s. 1 (b), Art. VII of the State Constitution and elsewhere defined) capable of manual possession and whose chief value is intrinsic to the article itself. "Construction work in progress" consists of those items of tangible personal property commonly known as fixtures, machinery, and equipment when the process of

being installed in or expanded improvements to real property and whose value is materially enchanced upon connection or use with preexisting, taxable operational system or facility. Construction work in progress shall be deemed substantially completed when connected with pre-existing, taxable, operational system or facility. "Inventory" and "household goods" are expressly excluded from this definition. "Live-aboard vessels" as defined in s. 327.02 (18) are expressly included in this definition. (e.s.).

It is evident from the lengthy opinion of the First District Court of Appeal in the <u>Markham</u> case, that the Court had quite a challenge in attempting to explain away the plain language of Art. VII, \$3(b) of the Florida Constitution limiting the "household goods and personal effects" exemption to Florida residents only. The First District Court went through a laborious process of tracing the statutory history of the various sections dealing with the taxation of personal property in order to reach the conclusion that the above cited statutory provisions of \$192.001(11)(d), F.S., except "household goods and personal effects" from ad valorem taxation, whether or not the owner is a resident or a non-resident of this state.

The Department will not attempt to reply on a point-bypoint basis to all of the comments of the First District Court in the <u>Markham</u> case. However, the Department respectfully submits that the basic fallacy underlying the First District's opinion in the Markham case is the court's conclusion that the Legislature

does have the power to exclude a certain type of property from ad valorem taxation by general law, even though the Florida Constitution does not expressly grant the Legislature the power to exempt such type of property from ad valorem taxation.

The language of Art. VII, §4, Fla. Const., provides in pertinent part that:

Sec. 4 <u>Taxation; assessments</u>--By general law regulations shall be prescribed which shall secure a just valuation of <u>all property</u> for ad valorem taxation. (e.s.).

Under §§3, 4, 5 and 6 of Art. VII, Fla. Const., there are certain designated types of property that may be classified for tax purposes, assessed at a specified percentage of their value or that may be exempted from taxation. However, household goods and personal effects of <u>non-residents</u> are not included in any of the expressly designated types of properties in Art. VII that may be exempted from taxation.

Article VII, §3(b), Fla. Const., does provide an exemption dealing with "household goods and personal effects," and said provision reads in pertinent part as follows:

> (b) There shall be exempt from taxation, cumulatively, to every head of a family <u>residing in</u> this state, household goods and personal effects to the value fixed by general law, not less than one thousand dollars. . . . (e.s.).

The plain language of the above cited portion of Art. VII, §3(b), Fla. Const., clearly limits the constitutional exemption for "household goods and personal effects" to persons residing in this state. There are no other provisions in the Florida

Constitution that either expressly or implicitly provide a constitutional basis to empower the Florida Legislature to exempt household goods and personal effects from ad valorem taxation.

This Court has unequivocally and repeatedly held that the Florida Constitution mandates that all property located in the state is subject to ad valorem taxation, unless specific authority to exempt such property is granted in the Constitution; and, therefore, that the Florida Legislature has no authority to exempt from ad valorem taxation by general law any class of real or personal property for which the Constitution makes no provision for exempting. <u>Am Fi Inv. Corp. v. Kinney</u>, 360 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1978); <u>Archer v. Marshall</u>, 355 So.2d 781 (Fla. 1978); <u>Volusia</u> <u>County v. Daytona Beach Racing</u>, 341 So.2d 498 (Fla. 1976), <u>app.</u> <u>dis.</u>, 434 U.S. 804, 98 S.Ct. 32, 54 L.Ed.2d 61 (1977); <u>Presbyterian</u> <u>Homes of Synod of Florida v. Wood</u>, 297 So.2d 556 (Fla. 1974); and <u>Palethorpe v. Thomson</u>, 171 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1965).

This consistent ruling that no exemption of property from ad valorem taxation is legally permissible unless expressly authorized by the Florida Constitution was most recently articulated in the case of <u>Am Fi. Inv. Corp. v. Kinney</u>, <u>supra</u>, wherein this Court stated in pertinent part at page 416 of the opinion as follows:

. . . We agree with the trial court that the Florida Constitution requires that all property used for private purposes bear its just share of the tax burden for the support of local government and education with certain exceptions specifically enumerated in the constitution. (e.s.)

An argument might be made that the First District was dealing with a classification statute in the <u>Markham</u> case, rather than an exemption statute. However, in the recent case of <u>Dept. of</u> <u>Revenue v. Fla. Boaters Assoc., Inc.</u>, 409 So.2d 17 (Fla. 1981), this Court enunicated its express disapproval of an attempt by the Florida Legislature to avoid the plain meaning of taxation provisions of the Florida Constitution by a statutory "definitional" process. In the <u>Florida Boaters</u> case, this Court rejected the Legislature's apparent attempt to get around the Florida constitutional prohibition against subjecting boats to ad valorem taxation by classifying houseboats as "live-aboard vessels" and subjecting such "live-aboard vessels" to ad valorem taxation by statute.

In the case of <u>Palethorpe v. Thomson</u>, <u>supra</u>, this Court also rejected the Legislature's attempt to provide by statutory law that "house trailers" were not included within the definition of motor vehicles for purposes of the constitutional exclusion from ad valorem taxation.

The <u>Fla. Boaters Assoc.</u> and the <u>Palethorpe</u> cases reflect this Court's position that the Legislature may not circumvent the plain meaning of constitutional provisions relating to ad valorem taxation by direct or indirect means. Thus, if the Constitution does not expressly authorize the exemption from ad valorem taxation of a specified type or class of property, the Legislature may not indirectly exempt such property by statutorily "excluding" or "excepting" such property from ad valorem taxation. This Court succinctly stated at page 784 of its opinion in <u>Archer v. Marshall</u>, <u>supra</u>, that:

> . . . <u>Regardless of the term used to describe</u> the set-off, the reduction in rent afforded the leaseholders has the effect of a tax exemption and as such is unconstitutional since such exemption is not within the provisions of our present state constitution. (e.s.).

This Court has enunicated its express approval of the basic principle of statutory construction that the courts have the duty, if reasonably possible, to construe a statute so as not to conflict with the Florida Constitution. See, <u>State v. Gale Dist., Inc.</u> 349 So.2d 150, 153 (Fla. 1977). Consequently, the Department submits that it would be constitutionally impermissible for the courts to construe the provisions of §192.001(11)(d), F.S., excluding "household goods" from the definition of "tangible personal property" as compelling a conclusion that "household goods and personal effects" of both residents and non-residents of this state are not subject to ad valorem taxation, since the basic

mandate for such taxation is the organic law of the Florida Constitution.

Furthermore, the basic principle of law that all real and personal property in this state is subject to ad valorem taxation unless constitutionally exempt was also implemented into general law by the adoption of §196.001(1), F.S., which reads in pertinent part that:

> Property subject to taxation.--Unless expressly exempted from taxation, the following property shall be subject to taxation in the manner provided by law:

(1) <u>All</u> real and <u>personal property in this</u> <u>state</u> and all personal property belonging to persons residing in this state. . . . (e.s.).

Although this language appears in the statutory chapter on exemptions, this Court has held that §196.001 imposes tax liability. <u>Williams v. Jones</u>, 326 So.2d 425 (Fla. 1975). This Court noted on page 435 of the <u>Jones</u> opinion that the Legislature (in Ch. 71-113, Laws of Fla.) had placed the above quoted language in Ch. 192 as §192.010, and that the placement of this section in Ch. 196 by the Statutory Revision and Indexing Division did not affect the legislative intent to impose tax liability thereby. More recently in <u>Lykes Bros., Inc. v. City of Plant City</u>, 354 Sb.2d 878 (Fla. 1978), this Court said of that statutory section:

Section 196.001, Florida Statutes (1973) provides that all property is subject to taxation, unless expressly exempted. Id. at 880.

Thus, §196.001(1), F.S., provides a corresponding statutory basis to the constitutional mandate that all property not expressly exempted is subject to ad valorem tax. The property in question (household goods) is within the legislative classification of "personal property." Section 192.001(11)(a), F.S., defines "personal property" to include "household goods" as follows:

> <u>Definitions</u>.--All definitions set out in chapter 1 that are applicable to this part are included herein. In addition, the following definitions shall apply in the imposition of ad valorem taxes.

> > * * * *

(11) "Personal property," for the purposes of ad valorem taxation, shall be divided into four categories as follows:

(a) "Household goods" means wearing apparel, furniture, appliances and other items ordinarily found in the home and used for the comfort of the owner and his family. Household goods are not held for commercial purposes or resale.

From the foregoing definition, it can be seen that household goods are classified as one of four categories of personal property. Therefore, if the household goods are located in this state they

must be taxed under §196.001(1), unless expressly exempted. The only express statutory exemption for household goods is found in §196.181, F.S., which reads:

> Exemption of household goods and personal <u>effects.--There shall be exempt from tax-</u> ation to <u>every person residing and making</u> his or her permanent home in this state household goods and personal effects. . . . (e.s.).

Thus, by its clear and express terms, the statutory exemption language of §196.181 traces the constitutional mandate of Art. VII, §3(b) by limiting the household goods exemption to those persons residing and making their permanent homes in Florida. To the same effect is Department of Revenue Rule 12D-7.02, F.A.C., providing in pertinent part that "household goods and personal effects belonging to persons not residing and making their permanent homes in this state are not exempt."

The First District opined in its quashed <u>Markham</u> decision that, in a 1967 redraft of the ad valorem taxation provisions, the Legislature deliberately failed to specifically levy a tax on busehold goods and personal effects. Under this conclusion, there apparently would be no such thing as taxable household goods in Florida. However, §193.114, F.S. (1979), provides:

> Preparation of assessment rolls.--(1) Each property appraiser shall prepare the following assessment rolls:

> > *

* *

*

(b) Tangible personal property assessment roll. This roll shall include inventory, taxable household goods, and all other taxable tangible personal property. (e.s.).

Thus, if the rationale of the First District Court in its <u>Markham</u> opinion was correct, it would necessarily follow that the reference to placing "taxable household goods" on the tax or rolls in §193.114(1)(b), F.S., is a nullity. Likewise, if no household goods or personal effects are subject to taxation by the Florida Constitution or statutes in the first place, then the express exemption of residents' household goods as set forth in §196.181, F.S., is a meaningless statutory provision. However, in Lykes Bros., Inc. v. City of Plant City, supra, at 881, this Court expressly declined to adopt a construction of the ad valorem tax statutes which would render a portion thereof a redundancy. See also, generally, 30 Fla. Jur., Statutes, §118.

POINT II

THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS LIMITING THE EXEMPTION FROM AD VALOREM TAXATION OF HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND PERSONAL EFFECTS TO FLORIDA RESIDENTS ONLY ARE NOT VIOLATIVE OF THE PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES CLAUSE OF THE U.S. CONSTITUTION.

The Respondents contended in the District Court below that an ad valorem tax on household goods and personal effects of nonresidents only violates the Privileges and Immunities Clause of the United States Constitution (Art. IV, 2, Cl. 1). However, none of the federal cases cited in the Respondents' briefs below upholding a claim under the Privileges and Immunities Clause dealt with a factual situation where the subject activity of the non-resident was leisure or recreational in nature as opposed to some fundamental right, such as a commercial calling.

One of the principal cases relied upon by the Respondents in the District Court in connection with their Privileges and Immunities Clause claim is the case of <u>Austin v. New Hampshire</u>, 420 U.S. 656, 43 L.Ed. 2d 530, 95 S.Ct. 1191 (1975). The Supreme Court did hold in the <u>Austin</u> case that a state commuters income tax which fell exclusively on the incomes of non-residents and was not offset by other taxes imposed upon residents alone, violated the Privileges and Immunities Clause of the U.S. Constitution.

However, the activity presented in the <u>Austin</u> case which the Supreme Court found to be a "fundamental right" protected by the Privileges and Immunities Clause was the right of the non-resident to earn a living in the State of New Hampshire and to be taxed on the income from that state in the same manner as a permanent resident. In the case before this Court, the Respondents are not contending that the household goods and personal effects assessed by the Property Appraiser were used in connection with their earning of a livelihood in this state. In fact, <u>it is uncontroverted that the Respondents' part-time</u> <u>dwelling was not used a rental property and that the household</u> <u>goods and personal effects in question were not used commercially during the tax year in question.</u>

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