# FILED

SED & WHITE

CLERK SHOREME COURT

Chist Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA NOV 17 1983

SAM J. COLDING, as Collier County Property Appraiser, and the DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioners,

vs.

CASE NO. 64,366

PETER W. HERZOG AND JOAN L. HERZOG,

Respondents.

Second District Court of Appeal of Florida Case No. 82-2013

RESPONDENTS' ANSWERING BRIEF

PETER W. HERZOG 411 North Seventh Street, Suite 1300 St. Louis, Missouri 63101 (314) 231-6700 and 3160 Fort Charles Drive Naples, Florida 33940 (813) 263-1149

LEO J. SALVATORI QUARLES & BRADY The Four Hundred Building 400 Fifth Avenue South, Suite 301 Naples, Florida 33940 (813) 262-5959

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

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I

## THE HOUSEHOLD GOODS AND PERSONAL EFFECTS OF BOTH RESIDENTS AND NON-RESIDENTS ARE NOT PROPER SUBJECT MATTERS OF AD VALOREM TAXATION IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

The District Court in a unanimous decision below determined that the household goods and personal effects of both residents and non-residents were not proper subject matters of taxation in the State of Florida. They did so after a full review of the Briefs by both parties and after a full analysis of the decision of the First District Court of Appeals in Department of Revenue v. Markham, 381 So.2d 1101 (Fla. 1 DCA 1979). Petitioners' Argument with respect to their Point I necessarily involves an analysis of the Markham case. Petitioners have consistently in this litigation attempted to distinguish and to disparage the decision in Markham because this Court quashed that opinion as there was no standing by the Plaintiff in that case. Department of Revenue v. Markham, 396 So.2d 1120 (Fla. 1981). However, as the District Court below pointed out, there is standing in this case and the rationale of the Markham 1 DCA decision is fully dispositive of the issues and its conclusions were adopted by the District Court below.

-2-

Respondents would, indeed, have a difficult task improving upon the reasoning by the First District Court of Appeals in Markham as adopted by the District Court below. Respondents respectfully suggest that the well reasoned and comprehensive opinion in Markham is fully and adequately dispositive of the statutory construction issues and in the interest of brevity will not attempt to restate the logical progression outlined by the Court in the Markham decision. The essential holding of Markham, reached on Florida statutory construction grounds, is that Chapter 67-377, Laws of Florida (1967), eliminates household goods and personal effects as a proper subject of ad valorem taxation in Florida, rather than such property being taxable and then exempted. The distinction between classification of taxables and exemption is a vital one to this action. While Respondents rely on Chapter 67-377, now codified as § 192.001(11)(d), Florida Statutes, Petitioners contend that § 196.181, an exemption statute, is controlling, and restricts the non-taxation of household goods and personal effects to residents of Florida. The Markham opinion carefully considers the classification issue which Petitioners attempt to avoid in their Brief.

The <u>Markham</u> Court was careful to conclude that the classification power of the Legislature was supreme over its exemption power. This Court has recognized the power of the Legislature to classify and of the common sense results flowing therefrom in light of the fact that the Constitution of Florida

-3-

cannot in all instances define and set forth each and every answer to an infinite number of problems. In <u>Ammerman v. Markham</u>, 222 So.2d 423 (Fla. 1969), this Court construed a statute wherein the Legislature had applied the homestaed exemption to condominiums and cooperative apartments and had considered those types of ownerships to be the equivalent of real property and a "dwelling house" as specified in the Constitution. In so doing, this Court quoted with approval its prior decision in <u>Jasper v. Mease Manor</u>, Inc., 202 So.2d 821 (Fla. 1968), to the following extent:

> "In Jasper v. Mease Manor, Inc. (Fla. 1968), 208 So.2d 821, the Court considered a statute defining the word 'charitable' as used in Fla.Const. 1885, Art. IX, § 1, limiting tax exemption statutes to those properties used for 'municipal, education, literary, scientific, religious or charitable purposes.' The statute in question included within the exemption homes operated for aged persons without regard to such persons' financial dependence or independence. Earlier definitions by the Court of the word 'charitable' as used in the Constitution were more limited. This Court, in sustaining the validity of the legislative act extending the definition, said:

"'The test for measuring such legislation against the constitutional restraints must be that of reasonable relationship between the specifically described exemption and one of the purposes which the Constitution requires to be served. The problem therefore differs significantly from that which has been presented in cases requiring judicial definition of the constitutional concepts in the absence of an explicit statute. Application in those cases of a more limited definition of charitable use, in the primary sense of relief for the indigent or helpless, does not require or justify rejection of the current statute on constitutional grounds.' (Emphasis supplied.)

-4-



"This legislative approval of individual ownership of units in a multiple-dwelling structure bears a resonable relationship to the purposes of Art. X, § 7, Fla.Const. 1885. Ch. 67-339 is a valid legislative definition of 'real property' and 'dwelling house,' as used in the Constitution, . . ."

### Id. at p. 426

Following the precepts enunciated above, the <u>Markham</u> Court, First District, moved on to a consideration of its duties. It stated:

> " . . . Therefore, this court's task, under the circumstances, is to interpret the statutes in accordance with the legislative intent. In so doing, to the extent that the legislative intent is in doubt, or if the statutes are so ambiguous as to render legislative intent questionable or unclear, it is the duty of the taxing authority and the court to construe them liberally in favor of the taxpayer and strictly against the taxing authority. Department of Revenue v. Brookwood Associates, Ltd., 324 So.2d 184 (Fla. 1st DCA 1975). The courts indulge the further presumption that, if any state of facts can be conceived of which would sustain the reasonableness and validity of an act of the legislature, such state of facts exists and justifies the enactment. Ex Parte Lewis, 101 Fla. 624, 135 So. 147 (Fla.1931)."

> > Id. at pp. 1109, 1110

Applying these principles and performing its duty of statutory construction, the Markham Court, First District, concludes:

"... We do conclude, however, that there is adequate basis in the record before us to indicate that exclusion of such property from consideration by taxing officials and taxpayers alike serves a legitimate, though different, public purpose than the exemption statute, namely, the elimination of the useless expenditure of manpower and resources not justified by adequate return to the public treasury. We also think it is



not inconceivable to assume that once the legislature determined that the exemption conferred upon residents should be unlimited as to value, it saw no reasonable distinction to be made between total absence of taxation with respect to household goods and personal effects of residents, and total absence of taxation of such property owned by nonresidents. Cf. Shevin v. Kahn, 273 So.2d 72 (Fla.1973), affirmed on appeal Kahn v. Shevin, 416 U.S. 351, 94 S.Ct. 1734, 40 L.Ed.2d 189; Department of Revenue v. Amrep Corp., 358 So.2d 1343 (Fla.1978)."

<u>Id</u>. at p. 1111

Petitioners would distinguish the <u>Markham</u> decision by maintaining that the Florida Legislature had no authority to exempt from ad valorem taxation by general law any class of real or personal property for which the Constitution makes no provision for exemption. In support of this proposition, Petitioners cite a number of cases which Respondents submit are not in point.

<u>Am Fi Inv. Corp. v. Kinney</u>, 360 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1978), held that a private tax exemption was not valid. The exemption granted by the Legislature in <u>Kinney</u> was applicable to the peculiar circumstances arising from the development of Santa Rosa Island. It was clearly a special act limited to the residents of that island and was properly stricken by this Court for just that reason.

To the same effect is <u>Archer v. Marshall</u>, 355 So.2d 781 (Fla. 1978), a case likewise applicable to the Santa Rosa Island Development and in essence a tax relief bill. This Court,

-6-

in responding to the Legislature's attempt to pass special legislation, stated:

"It is fundamentally unfair for the Lesiglature to statutorily manipulate assessment standards and criteria to favor certain taxpayers over others."

## Id. at p. 784

The special legislation enacted by the Legislature of Florida in an effort to solve the Santa Rosa Island problems, and the proper invalidation of that legislation by this Court, is quite different from the issues in this case. Perhaps, the admonition of this Court as quoted above is more to the point than is the principal for which the Petitioners cite these two cases.

In <u>Volusia County v. Daytona Beach Racing, Inc</u>., 341 So.2d 498 (Fla. 1976), this Court held that public property which a private corporation leased from a legislatively created district was not exempt from ad valorem taxation inasmuch as it was used for proprietary and private purposes.

The reliance of Petitioners on <u>Dept. of Revenue v. Fla.</u> <u>Boaters Assoc., Inc</u>., 409 So.2d 17 (Fla. 1981), is likewise inappropriate. In that case, the Department of Revenue took the position that the "live-aboard vessels" were taxable because they were not being utilized as boats. Both the District Court and this Court in <u>Florida Boaters</u> held that the Legislature had not properly defined the term "boats" and sustained the position of the taxpayer rather than the Department of Revenue. Certainly, <u>Florida Boaters</u> cannot be cited for the proposition urged by

-7-

Petitioners. This Court, in holding that the exemption given to owners of boats must be strictly construed in favor of the taxpayer, held:

> "In the instant case, the legislative words fall short of language sufficient to take 'live-aboard vessels' out of the constitutionally excluded class." Id. at 19, 20.

In short, it was a victory for the taxpayer and did not represent a limitation placed by this Court in the manner inferred by Petitioners.

The case of <u>Palethorpe v. Thomson</u>, 171 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1974), involved the construction of the Florida Constitution exemption for motor vehicles from ad valorem and other taxation and analyzed whether or not a house trailer might be considered a motor vehicle under the Constitutional proscriptions. The Court did not reject the Legislature's attempt to provide a statutory definition of house trailers but considered the use of that term and found that the taxing authorities were making a proper construction of the term "motor vehicle" as excluding house trailers and that such was in harmony with the Constitutional principles. The case did <u>not</u>, as represented by Petitioners on Page 8 of their Brief, represent a rejection of the Legislature's attempt to provide a statutory scheme to obviate the meaning of the Florida Constitution.

The rationale of the First District Court of Appeals in <u>Markham</u> as adopted by the District Court below, is correct and dispositive fully of this single question. The cases relied upon by the Petitioners do not stand for the propositions for which

-8-

they are cited and should not change the result reached by the <u>Markham</u> Court and the District Court below. There is something manifestly unfair in the taxation of household goods and personal effects of non-residents and the total exemption therefrom of residents. The <u>Markham</u> Court recognized that fundamental unfairness and concluded that the Legislature had done likewise. So did the District Court below and Respondents respectfully submit that this Honorable Court should do likewise.

#### POINT TWO

THE AD VALOREM TAX HERE IN QUESTION, AS APPLIED ONLY TO NON-RESIDENTS OF FLORIDA, IS VOID BECAUSE IT VIOLATES THE PRIVILEGES AND IMMUNITIES CLAUSE OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE UNITED STATES: ARTICLE IV, § 2.

In an attempt to shift the burden of the "unfairness" argument, Petitioners characterize the tax in guestion as one directly related to activities of leisure, recreation and vacation. Petitioners mis-characterize the nature of the tax. Make no mistake about it; the tax applies to property - not leisure - to the necessities of life, namely, the ownership of household goods and personal effects. But it applies only to non-residents. Because these Respondents maintain the majority of their time in Missouri, Petitioners would characterize the tax on their necessities as a type of surtax on a recreational activity. There is no evidence in the Record to make these assumptions and it is just as reasonable to assume from the evidence in the Record that the necessities of life to which this tax attaches are used and enjoyed by the Respondents in discharging their daily and normal activities of life while occupying a second residence in Collier County, Florida. It is just as probable, and indeed, highly likely that a number of the non-residents of Florida affected by this tax are retirees, who still maintain their "residence" elsewhere but who maintain the majority of their household goods and personal effects in the State of Florida.

-10-

A DISPROPORTIONATE TAX ON THE OWNERSHIP OF THE NECESSITIES OF LIFE IS NOT THE SAME AS A DISPROPORTIONATE TAX ON THE HUNTING OF ELK.

The Supreme Court of the United States has repeatedly held that the principal purpose of the Privileges and Immunities Clause of Article IV, § 2, of the Constitution of the United States, is to "help fuse into one nation a collection of independent, sovereign states." Its purpose was to fuse a nation of individual states into a collected and federal body. The clause here applicable finds its source in the Articles of Confederation, Article IV, Paragraph 1. In part, too, it must derive its fundamental fairness from the Colonial principles of "no taxation without representation." It requires the state to treat nonresidents in the same manner that it treats residents. It prohibits compacts designed to interfere with the free flow of citizens among the several states and it prevents taxation wars between the various states. Its fundamental purpose is to insure to a citizen of State "A" who ventures into State "B" the same privileges that the citizens of State "B" enjoy. Toomer v. Witsel, 334 U.S. 385, 395, 68 S.Ct. 1156, 1162, 92 L.Ed. 1460, 1471 (1948). The United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia in Tangier Sound Watermen's Assoc. v. Douglas, 541 F.Supp. 1287 (1982), summarized quite accurately the judicial history found to exist by Justice Blackmun in his opinion, most frequently quoted and relied upon by Petitioners, in Baldwin v. Fish and Game Commission of Montana, 436 U.S. 371, 98 S.Ct. 1852, 56 L.Ed.2d (1978):

-11-

"Justice Blackmun noted three major developments in the interpretation of the clause. In Paul v. Virginia, 19 U.S. (8 Wall.) 168, 180, 19 L.Ed. 357 (1869), the Court had said that the clause 'insures to [nonresidents] in other States the same freedom possessed by citizens of those States in the acquisition and enjoyment of property and in the pursuit of happiness; and it secures to them in other States an equal protection of their laws.' 436 U.S. at 380, 98 S.Ct. at 1859, quoting Paul v. Virginia, supra, 19 U.S. at 180, 19 L.Ed. 357. The second development was in Hague v. CIO, 307 U.S. 496, 511, 59 S.Ct. 954, 962, 83 L.Ed. 1423 (1939), where the Court stated that the clause did not so much allow a citizen to carry the rights he had in his own State into other States, 'but, on the contrary, that in any State every citizen of any other State is to have the same privileges and immunities which the citizens of that State enjoy. The section, in effect, prevents a State from discriminating against citizens of other States in favor of its own.' 436 U.S. at 382, 98 S.Ct. at 1859, quoting Hague v. CIO, supra, 307 U.S. at 511, 59 S.Ct. at 962. The third development, according to Justice Blackmun, was in Austin v. New Hampshire, 420 U.S. 656, 660-661, 95 S.Ct. 1191, 1194-95 (1975), where it was said that the clause 'establishes a norm of comity without specifying the particular subjects as to which citizens of one State coming within the jurisdiction of another are guaranteed equality of treatment.' 436 U.S. at 382, 98 S.Ct. at 1859, quoting Austin v. New Hampshire, supra."

#### Id. at pp. 1297, 1298

In June of this year, the New Jersey Supreme Court struck down an Emergency Transportation Tax Act which had imposed the greater percentage of its burden on New York residents commuting into New Jersey. It did so for the reason that said tax violated the Privileges and Immunities Clause of the Constitution of the United States, Article IV, § 2, <u>Solario et al. v. Glaser</u>,

-12-

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